
 October 7, 2013 
 
 
IA-13-028 
 
Mr. Joel A Keown 
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.390] 
 
SUBJECT:  NOTICE OF VIOLATION – NRC INVESTIGATION REPORT 4-2013-004 
 
Dear Mr. Keown: 
 
This letter refers to the investigation completed by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission’s 
(NRC) Office of Investigations on April 17, 2013.  The purpose of the investigation was to 
determine whether you failed to report, to Southern California Edison Company’s San Onofre 
Nuclear Generating Station management, your July 28, 2008, arrest.  The NRC documented the 
results of the investigation, including the identification of an apparent violation, in a letter to you, 
dated July 12, 2013.  A factual summary of the investigation, as it pertains to your actions, was 
issued as an enclosure to our July 12 letter.   
 
In the letter transmitting the factual summary of the Office of Investigations’ report, we provided 
you the opportunity to address the apparent violation identified in the report by either attending a 
predecisional enforcement conference, participating in alternative dispute resolution, or by 
providing a written response before we made our final enforcement decision.  In your letter 
dated August 5, 2013, you provided a response to the apparent violations. 
 
Based on the information developed during the investigation and the information that you 
provided in your response of August 5, 2013, the NRC has determined that a deliberate 
violation of NRC requirements occurred.  The violation is cited in the enclosed Notice of 
Violation (Notice).  You deliberately failed to report an arrest as required by 10 CFR 73.56(g) 
and the San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station’s fitness-for-duty policy.  Specifically, you failed 
to report a 2008 arrest to San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station management within 48 hours 
of the arrest or upon return to work, as in accordance with the San Onofre Nuclear Generating 
Station’s fitness-for-duty policy.  You also failed to document the arrest on a Personal History 
Questionnaire dated August 3, 2012.   
 
After considering the deliberate nature of your actions, your former position within the San 
Onofre Nuclear Generating Station organization and the underlying significance of the issue, the 
NRC has categorized this violation at Severity Level III, in accordance with the NRC 
Enforcement Policy.  You should be aware that if you are involved in NRC-licensed activities in 
the future, additional deliberate violations could result in more significant enforcement or 
criminal action. 
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The NRC has concluded that information regarding the reason for the violation and the 
corrective actions that have been taken are already adequately addressed on the docket in your 
letter dated August 5, 2013.  Therefore, you are not required to respond to this letter unless the 
description therein does not accurately reflect your corrective actions or your position.  In that 
case, or if you choose to provide additional information, you should follow the instructions 
specified in the enclosed Notice. 
 
In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its 
enclosures, and your response, if you choose to provide one, will be made available 
electronically for public inspection in the NRC’s Public Document Room or from the NRC’s 
Agencywide Documents Access Management System (ADAMS), accessible from the NRC’s 
website at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html.  To the extent possible, your response 
should not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be 
made available to the Public without redaction.  The NRC also includes significant enforcement 
actions on its website at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/enforcement/actions/.   
 
In addition, this letter will be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act 
system of records, NRC-3, Enforcement Actions Against Individuals. The NRC-3 system notice, 
which provides detailed information about this system of records, can be accessed from the 
NRC’s website at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.html. 
 
Should you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact Ms. Christi Maier of my 
staff at (817) 200-1217.   
 

Sincerely,  
 
/RA/ 
 
 
Steven A. Reynolds 
Acting Regional Administrator  

 
Enclosure:  Notice of Violation  
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  Enclosure 

 NOTICE OF VIOLATION 
 
Mr. Joel A Keown  
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED 
UNDER 10 CFR 2.390]    IA-13-028 
 
During an NRC investigation conducted October 24, 2012, through April 17, 2013, a violation of 
NRC requirements was identified.  In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy, the 
violation is listed below:  
 

10 CFR 73.56(g) requires, in part, that any individual who is maintaining unescorted 
access or unescorted access authorization under this section shall promptly report to the 
reviewing official, or his or her supervisor, any legal action(s) taken by a law 
enforcement authority or court of law to which the individual has been subject that could 
result in incarceration or a court order or that requires a court appearance, including but 
not limited to an arrest, an indictment, the filing of charges, or a conviction. 

 
Contrary to the above, Mr. Joel A. Keown, failed to promptly report to the reviewing 
official, or his or her supervisor, any legal action(s) taken by a law enforcement authority 
or court of law to which the individual has been subject that could result in incarceration 
or a court order or that requires a court appearance, including but not limited to an 
arrest, an indictment, the filing of charges, or a conviction.  Specifically, Mr. Keown failed 
to report his July 28, 2008, arrest to Southern California Edison’s San Onofre Nuclear 
Generating Station management.  San Onofre Nuclear Generating Station discovered 
the arrest on August 3, 2012, during a background re-investigation.   

 
This is a Severity Level III violation (Section 6.9). 
 
The NRC has concluded that information regarding the reason for the violation, and the 
corrective actions taken by Mr. Keown to prevent recurrence, is already adequately addressed 
in a letter from Mr. Keown to the NRC dated August 5, 2013.  Therefore, you are not required to 
submit a written statement or explanation pursuant to 10 CFR 2.201 unless the description in 
the above referenced letters does not accurately reflect your position.  In that case, or if you 
otherwise choose to respond, clearly mark your response as a "Reply to a Notice of Violation, 
IA-13-028,” and send it to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN:  Document Control 
Desk, Washington, DC 20555-0001 with a copy to the Regional Administrator, Region IV, 1600 
East Lamar Blvd., Arlington, Texas 76011-4511, and marked "Open by Addressee Only,” within 
30 days of the date of the letter transmitting this Notice of Violation. 
 
If you contest this enforcement action, you should also provide a copy of your response, with 
the basis for your denial, to the Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001.  
 
If you choose to respond, your response will be made available electronically for public 
inspection in the NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), 
accessible from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html.  Therefore, to 
the extent possible, the response should not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or 
safeguards information so that it can be made available to the Public without redaction.
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This Notice, along with its accompanying cover letter, will be made available electronically for 
public inspection from ADAMS, unless you provide a sufficient basis to withdraw the Notice 
within the 30 days specified above for response.  The NRC also includes significant 
enforcement actions on its Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-
collections/enforcement/actions/.  In addition, this letter and its enclosure will be maintained by 
the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act system of records, NRC-3, “Enforcement 
Actions Against Individuals.”  The NRC-3 system notice, which provides detailed information 
about this system of records, can be accessed from the NRC’s website at 
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.html.  
 
Dated this 7th day of October 2013 
 


